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Located on the northwest corner of Jackson and Childs/streets in Corinth, Mississippi, 
the Curlee House is a significant example of Greek Revival: architecture modified and 
adapted to a domestic scale. Although the name of the architect has not survived, the 
excellent proportions and unified composition of the design clearly indicate that the 
house was the product of a single, well-trained man. Standing on a foundation of brick 
piers, the house is three bays wide, one story high, and surrounded on three sides by 
a narrow veranda. The exterior walls are finished with white stucco applied to lath 
on frame and scored to imitate ashlar masonry. Physical evidence indicates that the 
stucco was painted a straw color at an early date to cover what seems to have been a 
totally unconvincing example of marbleizing. The veranda, which is slightly let-out on 
each elevation to form small porticoes, is composed of slender chamfered columns on 
pedestals supporting a full entablature detailed with delicate water-leaf carvings 
below the frieze and simple starlike designs on the cornice. A narrow parapet wall 
is placed above the entablature to screen the structure's low-pitched roof. Large, 
full-length windows, placed symmetrically on each elevation, are hung in substantial 
eared architraves which are ornamented with applied rosettes and which support a 
shallow cornice. Each window opening retains its original set of louvered blinds. 
Recessed behind an opening which repeats the exact details and dimensions of the 
windows, is the entrance to the Curlee House. It is contained in a substantial 
frontispiece designed with pilasters that separate the door from narrow, flanking 
sidelights, and is capped by a large, seven-light transom. Alterations to the exterior 
of the house have been limited to the replacement of two pairs of octagonal chimneys 
with lower, more conventional stacks, the removal of simple, sawn antefixes from the 
parapet wall, and the construction of a frame addition to the rear elevation in the 
early 1930s.

The plan of the Curlee House is based on the traditional double-pile formula, 
with a broad central passage separating the drawing and dining rooms on the south 
side from two chambers currently furnished as a library and bedroom on the north. 
Two simple plaster chandelier medallions and a chair rail with panel-like moldings 
applied to the dado below are used to emphasize the entrance hall. As the "best 
room," the drawing room received special treatment by being housed in a sixteen-foot- 
nine-inch cube and by the use of giant pilasters, with egg and dart molding on the 
capitals, to frame the door, mantel, and windows. The pilasters visually support 
an ambitious entablature with an architrave carved with a delicate water-leaf design, 
a frieze ornamented with an elaborate guilloche, and a cornice of deeply undercut 
acanthus leaves which twist around a center rod. Because of the attention given to 
the room's proportion and architectural program, the drawing room at the Curlee 
House is considered to be among the finest of the period in Mississippi. Other 
major interior features include wooden mantels designed with simple paneled 
pilasters supporting uncarved friezes and shelves; deep, well-proportioned cornices, 
with rosettes applied to the friezes which run beneath; and the battered and 
eared architraves surrounding six paneled doors.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Curlee House is a significant example of domestic Greek Revival architecture 
and, because of its association with locally prominent families and several important 
Civil War figures, is among the most historic structures in Alcorn County. Construction 
of the house was begun in about 1857 by a surveyor named Hamilton Ma/k. With his 
brother-in-law, Houston Mitchell, Mask had established the town of Corinth in 1855, a 
few miles below the Tennessee state line at the junction of the Mobile and Ohio and 
the Memphis and Charleston railroads. Mask, who later served two terms (1866, 1872) 
as ma5?or of Corinth, sold the property to Burnett B. Will^erson for $7,000 in 1860. 
Later that same year the title passed to William Simoriton, who retained ownership 
for the next twelve years. /

During the Civil War, Simonton's residence served as headqua/ters for both Con­ 
federate and Federal generals during their occupations of Corinth. With its defeat 
at the Battle of Shiloh (April 6, 1862), the Confederate army under/P. G. T. Beauregard 
retreated twenty miles south to Corinth, where General Braxton Br^gg took up residence 
in Simonton's house. General Earl Van D^rn, whose army had come from Arkansas to join 
Beauregard at (Corinth, later occupied the house with Bragg. The Federal army of General 
Henry W. Halle/ck pursued the retreating Confederates so slowly that by the time it had 
reached Corinth on May 30, 1862, Generals Beauregard, Bragg, and Van Dorn had quietly 
withdrawn farther south with their men. Thus, the Federal army occupied Corinth without 
a fight and Simonton's residence once again served as a commander's headquarters, this 
time for General Halleck. The 15,000-man Union army continued to camp at Corinth until 
October 3, 1862, when the city was attacked by Confederate Generals Van Dorn and Sterling 
Price. Although unsuccessful in their attempts to secure Corinth for themselves, the 
Confederates forced the Federals to pursue their retreat, thus leaving the city unoccupied, 
By October 5, 1862, Simonton's house was returned to civilian use.

Reflecting the deteriorated economic condition brought about by civil war and re­ 
construction, the property was sold for $4,000 in 1872. Three years later, the house 
and lot were purchased for $2,000 by William P. Cu/lee (1833-1878), a locally prominent 
lawyer and jurist. A native of Tipton County, Tennessee, Curlee graduated in 1856 
from Union University at Murfreesboro, Tennessee, and took his law degree at Lebanon 
Law School in 1858. After serving in various regiments of the Confederate army, Curlee 
settled in Tishomingo County, Mississippi, where on October 20, 1865, he was elected 
judge of the probate court. When Alcorn County was carved out of Tishomingo in 1870, 
Curlee moved permanently to the new county seat at Corinth, where he practiced law until 
his death in 1878. In 1882, Curlee's widow, Mary Boone Curlee, sold the property.

After a succession of owners and subdivisions, the house was purchased in 1921 by 
Shelby Hammond Curlee, who by 1938 had succeeded in acquiring all the original family 
property. S. H. Curlee had established a woolen mill in Corinth in 1896 which, when
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moved to St. Louis in 1905, became the famous Curlee Clothing Company. His sister, 
Eleanor Katherine Curlee, occupied the house from 1925 until her death in 1944. It 
was during her residence that the house was modernized with a rear addition con­ 
taining a kitchen, bedroom, and bath and with a brick wall built to replace a simple 
picket fence surrounding the property. The property is now maintained by the Corinth 
Library Commission, which was deeded the house by S. H. Curlee IV in a series of 
gifts from 1960 to 1963. Today the house is operated as a museum and open regularly 
to the public.

Despite additions made to the structure, the Curlee House is significant for the 
quality and integrity of its architectural fabric. The design is notable for the 
skillful handling of abstract proportion, the knowledgeable and restrained reference 
to Greek Revival motifs, and the clear, uncluttered delineation of individual parts. 
Because there exists a detailed pen and ink drawing and an excellent photograph of the 
house, both made during the Civil War, it is not difficult to assess or appreciate 
the significant degree of preservation which the Curlee House enjoys. With a few 
minor exceptions, the house stands today just as it did when completed in 1857.
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